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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
- DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department of Transportation

CHRISTOPHER D. CLEMENT, SR. JEFF BRILLHART, P.E.
COMMISSIONER ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan Bureau of Rail & Transit

and the Honorable Council | May 1, 2013
State House 5
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an afigreement with VNA @ HCS, Inc. (Vendor #
177274), Keene, NH, for an amount not to exceed $531,138 for public transportation services in the City of
Keene, for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015, effectlve upon approval by Governor and Council.
100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the FY 2014 and Zbl5 budget contingent upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds, with the authority to adj ust ‘encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years

through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

FY 2014 FY 2015

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation ' _f

072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $265,5 69 $265,569
EXPLANATION

The Department has approved a request for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding from VNA @ HCS to
assist-in the provision of public transit service in the Clty of Keene. VNA @ HCS is a private, non-profit
organization providing rural public transportation services for the general public and elderly individuals and
individuals with disabilities in the City of Keene. b

The following routes are currently operated Monday through Friday:
Campus Community Shuttle — Serving Keene State Cojlege Campus, 24 round trips with 10 stops
City Express Black Route Bus — Serving Greater Keene, 9 round trips with 12 stops.
City Express Red Route Bus — Serving Greater Keene,}S round trips with 13 stops.

The bus schedule for VNA @ HCS is attached to this Agreerilent.

The Department’s proposed FY 2014 and 2015 operating budget 1ncludes funds fromthe Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Section 5311 non-urban area formula | program for public transportation in non-urbanized
areas. VNA @ HCS has provided public transit utilizing these funds since 1993. The Department has allocated
funding for the coming biennium based on prior funding levels, applications received, and available FTA funds.
For the SFY 2014-2015 biennium, the FTA Section 5311 allocatlon for VNA @ HCS is $529,938.

In addition to funds for transit operanon FTA Section 5317 New Freedom Program funds in the amount of
$1,200 are allocated to VNA @ HCS for the SFY 2014-2015 biennium for travel training services to educate
individuals with disabilities and assist them in using public tgan51t services in the City of Keene. As required by
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FTA, this project is identified in a locally developed poordinated public transit — human services transportation
plan. ‘

VNA @ HCS will provide the required matching funds, 20% for administration and/or capital and 50% for
operations.

The Department released a public notice on February 8, 2013 announcing the availability of funding from the
FTA Section 5311 (Formula Grants for other than urbanized areas), Section 5316 (Jobs Access and Reverse
Commute), and Section 5317 (New Freedom) with appllcatlon submissions due March 29, 2013.

&

The Department received applications for eight (8) rural public transit systems as follows:

AT  |Advance Transit B Advance Transit
* |Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack
CAT |Concord Area Transit Counties
‘ Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack
WTS |Winnipesaukee Transit System Counties

CAHS Commﬁnity Alliance Transportation Services|Community Alliance for Human Services
-~ |VNA @ Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community

VNA [City Express : Services

- NCT |North Country Transit Tri-County Community Action Program
CCT |Carroll County Transit Tri-County Community Action Program (
CRT |Connecticut River Transit :  |Connecticut River Transit

An evaluation committee that consisted of Shelley Winters (NHDOT Rail & Transit Administrator), Frederick
Butler (NHDOT Rail & Transit Transportation Specialist), and Christopher Morgan (retired NHDOT Rail &
Transit Administrator) reviewed, evaluated and scored applications based on criteria as indicated in the
application materials and the Department’s State Management Plans for FTA programs. Every application met
the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2014 public transit funding plan and will be awarded separate
amounts for the aforementioned transit systems.

|The proposed service effectlvely addresses a demonstrated community need. . 10%
IThe applicant has the fiscal and technical capa01ty and adequate budget to operate its | 15%
service. °
%The applicant has successful experience in prov1d1ng transportation services 15%

iy

?‘ _ The application shows coordination with other transportatlon prov1ders in the service 10%
jarea: public, nonprofit, and for-profit. : °

e

?fThe applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and 10%
lotherwise, on the part of citizens and local government. ¢
|The applicant demonstrates effort to involve the prlvate sector in the delivery of 59
[transportation services. °
[Elderly and disabled citizens have full access to the applicant's services. : 10%




he applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness,
easured in ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New . 15%
pplicants must demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

i .

;T he applicant complies with relevant Federal and state gregulations, and has a history

0,
f compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. 10%

i

- 100%

Explanatioﬁ ’ Pg)mﬁt \fﬁlue
None. Not addressed or response of no value ! 0

Fair, Limited applicability ] 1-3
Good. Some applicability 4-6
Very Good. Substantial applicability 7-8
Excellent. Total applicability . ' 9-10

Advance Transit 7y 9.30
Concord Area Transit * 8.57
Winnipesaukee Transit System ‘ , 7.40
Community Alliance Transportation Services 8.38
City Express 8.45
North Country Transit ‘, 7.27
Carroll County Transit ' 6.62
Connecticut River Transit ‘ 8.37

~ In the event that Federal funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General és to form and execution and the Department will
verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2014 and 2015 budget. Copies of
the fully executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative
Services’ Office, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of
Transportation. f

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

Christopher D. Clement, Sr.
Commissioner
Attachments

1
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FORM NUMBER P-37 ( version 1/09)

VNA AT HCS, INC. SFY 2014-2015

Subject:

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. TDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name

1.2 State Agency Address

PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03302-0483

NH Department of Transportation

1.3 Contractor Name 1<4 Contractor Address

VNA AT HCS, INC. 312 Marlboro Street, Keene NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 17 Completion Date - 1.8 Price Limitation
Number , My : ;

[603-352-2253 | | Jo4-96-96-964010-2016-0724g) | [/uine 30, 2015 253113800

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number

Patrick C. Herllhy, Director of Aeronautics, Rall&Transrt ‘ 603 271-2468

1.11 Contractor Signature

\‘;ff;L7{:{J/é£rszL’téf 22;%269512;/(,26:%fi:: %Barbata Duckett, President/CEQ

Coun"ym i

» 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor-Signatory

113 Acknoldemt
wledgemern State L Cheshwe |

On i [7 ?// A §// /3 | before the under51gned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
“proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated iz block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace : ' C
CAROL ELIZABETH PRICE, Notary Public

My Commission Expires'June 3, 2014
[Seal] ﬂ/%/zﬂ M/Q}Z/)/ ‘

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary o#fustice of the Peace

CarolElizabeth Price, Notary Public

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

; W_ﬂ: reo” |

1.14 State/ﬂ ency Signature

LKL z’/\/

1.16 Apploval by the N.H. Departffient of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Duector, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

AN
n 79 f— Z//‘f/(IB

1.18 Approval by the Govefnor and ExecutivelCouncil

On:

By:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreeinent, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the. Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”)
3.2 If thé Contractor commences the Services prior to the
‘Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the

Contractor, incliding without limitation, any obligation to pay

the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder-in excess of such available appropriated
'funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become aveulable if ever and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement 1mrned1ate1y upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
- to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable,

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no habxhty to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the rlght to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law,
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-5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the

contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection. with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply w1th all '
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall __
not discriminate against employees or applicants for '

. employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,

handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the -
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal

Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the

regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines

as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to .
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of {
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.‘

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provxde all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to.do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreément, and for a period of six (6)- months after the
Completion Daté in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,

and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or ‘
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who'is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block: 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of-any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

'
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or '

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both,

* 9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

* 9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to thé Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report ’
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all

respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to

© bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation

or other emoluments provided by tlie State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any

* interest in this Agreément without the prior written consent of
' the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the

Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

: 13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
. indemnify and hold harmless the State; its officers and -

employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,

- liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be

* claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the -

Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

' sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby

reserved to the State.. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE. ,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following

. insurance:
. 14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all

claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts

* of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2, OOO 000 per
"occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all

- property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
“less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
+14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
‘be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
_State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
‘Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
‘Hampshire,

'14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of

Jinsurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this

Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
.expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The

- fcertiﬁcate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

Contractor Initi§1



v

attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written nonce of cancellation or modification
of the pohcy

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION. -~

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensationin - (
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for-Contractor;. or

. any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might

arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all.of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses

- given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and,
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
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intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party. - ‘

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be

‘construed to confer any such benefit.

2]1. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
prov1s1ons of this Agreement.

22.SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference .

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect. :

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each. of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior -
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

A /




EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A ~ SCOPE OF SERVICES
EXHIBITB =~ BUDGET

EXHIBIT C SPECIAL PROVISIONS
EXHIBITD VEHICLE ]NVEI;\ITORY

CER_TIFICATE’:OF GOOD STANDING
CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE VOTE
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

REQUIRED FEDERAL CLAUSES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 13(C) WARRANTY
 FINANCIAL AUDIT or PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT
LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS |
LIST OF KEY PERSONNEL AND SALARIES
RESUMES OF THOSE INVOLVED WITH PROJECT
REQUIRED QUARTERLY REPORT FORM
REQUIRED CHARTER REPORT FORM

REQUIRED NTD REPORT FORM
BUS SCHEDULE






EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

July 1,2014 - June 30,2015

The Contractor, VNA at HCS, Inc., shall provide the following public transit service(s)

A.l1 Fixed roﬁte, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in the
City of Keene, as detailed in the “Project Description” of the Contractor’s application to
the Department for Section 5311 funding including a map of service areas and fare
structure. : "

A.2 Travel training services, as detailed in the “Project Description” of the Contractor’s
application to the Department for Section 5317 funding, will include education, outreach,
and rider training services for individuals with disabilities and case managers who work
with individuals with disabilities. Outreach activities and rider training will be conducted
to encourage the use the City Express fixed-route public transit service or Para Express = -
complementary paratransit service within the city of Keene.

A3 The Contractor shall not change, add, or délete any route or make any fare, service
or operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the State,

except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the Contractor shall notify the
State no later than the next working day following the day of such changes. Such change
shall be valid for five days; thereafter, the written approval of the State shall be required. .

A.4 The Contractor shall utilize ADA-complia1§1t vehicles outlined in Exhibit D, Project
Equipment purchased by the State and identified by Vehicle Identification Numbers to be

appended to this agreement.



EXHIBIT B
BUDGET

B.1 The Contract price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the

Section 5311 and 5317 portlon of the ehglble project costs. Federal funds are granted as

follows:
FY 2014 ~ FY 2015

Section 5311 .

Administration $103,779 $103,779

Capital (PM) $ 31,765 $ 31,765

Operating S $129,425 $129,425
Section 5317 o _

Travel Training ~$ 600 $ 600
Total Federal Funds . ' $265,569 ' $265,569

Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

B.2 Fourteen days prior to the submission of the Contractor's first request for Federal
Section 5311 reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit to the State a budget

" incorporating all funds to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this
-contract. Budget revisions may be made with written approval of the State, and are
limited to the six-month interval and year<end of the contract. Revisions that meet or
exceed a 10% and $2,500 change will require a detailed explanation. Budget revisions
may only request the transfer of funds within a category or between categories with the
same matching ratio. '

B.3 The Contractor may seek reimbursement for eligible expenses listed in "Budget
Categories and Line Items," listed in Guidelines for Establishment of Accounting and
Bookkeeping Procedures for Recipients of Section 5311 (Rural and Small-Urban
Program) Funds, with the exception of funds specifically reserved, if any, and identified
in "Specifically Programmed Funds," at the-end of this Exhibit

B.4 At the sole discretion of the State, the Contractor may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal funds included in the Contract Price to a subsequent
contract, if any, between the State and the Contractor.



EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has accepted the General Liability
insurance of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 General Aggregate and $4,000,000 per
occurrence excess liability for VNA at HCS in fulfillment of the requirements of Section 14.1.1
- General Liability Insurance of the P-37 form.

C.L

2.1

C.2.

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Amend P-37 Section 2. “EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO BE
PERFORMED?” by adding the following:

The Contractor may change services only with the prior written agreement of the State and in
accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

Amend P-37 Section 5. “CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT” by adding the
following:

The. Contract Price Limitation represents the maximum to be paid by the State to the
Contractor under this contract. It shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare
revenues plus 80% of allowable admmlstratlve and capital costs. Operating, administrative and
capital costs are identified in Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide and document the
availability of local funds sufficient to meetithe project cost in excess of the Contract Price
Limitation.

In the event that revenues exceed the total éllowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest bearing account within 30 days of the Completion
Date and made available to the State upon demand.

The Contractor shall submit a request for payljnent to the State on a form specified by the State
on a monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request. Such
requests for payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be
for allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 225 (formerly OMB Circular A-87). No
requests for advance payment will be accepted by the State.

‘Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the

allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Contractor shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 5.

Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing
to the Contractor and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.
Contract reimbursements shall not exceed 50% of the total contract amount in any given

quarter.

Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by thfc State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final’ payment. (i.e., payment for the last month or



C.3.

6.4

6.5

6.6

C4.

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the State
and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and withheld
pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this Agreement and -
resolution of all pending matters.

Amend P-37 Section 6. “COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY” by adding the following:

The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or .advertisements for employees, that all
qualified applicants will receive con51derat10n for employment without regard to race, color,-
age, creed, sex or national origin. -

- The provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-102, 49 CFR Part 18, shall
apply to local' administration of this agreement and any subcontracts under this agreement.

Amend P-37 Section 9. “DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/PRESERVATION” by adding
the following:

The followmg restrictlons apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of thls
. agreement:

‘a) “Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole oOr in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor authorize others to do
'so, without the written consent of the State, until such fime as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public. :

b) As authorized by 49 CFR Part 18.34, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to use,
for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, sub-grant,
or third party contract, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and any
rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-reclpient or third party contractor purchases
ownership with Federal ‘'assistance.

It is, FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.4 (b) above, FTA
may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, contractor or subcontractor its license in the
copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under
this Agreement.

The Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any wiliful or intentional violation of the
proprietary rights, copyrights,-or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation,
reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

‘Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or
be construed as affecting the scope of any 11cense or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent.



9.8  Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to miaterial furnished to the Contractor by
the State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement;
provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Contractor at the time of delivery
of such work.

9.9  In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under that
project shall become subject Data as defined:in Sectlon 9.1 and shall be dehvered as the State.

or FTA may direct.

C.5.  Amend P-37 Section 10. “TERMINATION” by" adding the foliowing

10.1 The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Admlnlstratlon
_(FTA) prior to final payment

10.2 Terrmnatlon; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this Agreement,
the acceptance of a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve the Contractor
from any and all liability for damages sustamed or incurred by the State as a result of the
Contractor's breach of its obligations hereunder including refund of any federal funds required

by FTA.

'10.3  Completion of Services; Payment of Pr1ce . Excepting those obligations of the Contractor
* which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the -
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Contract Price, this Agreement, and all”
obligations of the parties hereunder shall « cease and shall be without recourse to the parties

hereto:

10.4 Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Contractor hereunder,
the Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days. written

notice.

. C.6. Amend P-37 Section 12 “ASSIGNMENTS/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS” by adding the
following:

12.1 The Contractor shall cause the provisions of th1s ¢ontract to be inserted in all subcontracts for
any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subcontractor; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to
subcontractors for standard commercial supphes or raw materials. The Contractor shall take
such action with respect to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of enforcing
such provisions, including sanctions for noncbmpliance The Contractor shall ensure that any
subcontractor has obtained all licenses, perrnlts or approvals required for the performance of -

“ contract services. )

C.7.  Amend P-37 by adding “DEFINITIONS” as Section 25

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services described
in Exhibit A and which satisfy the requlrements of 41 CFR Part 1-15, Subpart 1-15.7.

i

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration



Cas.

PROJ’ECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the
State detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Contract as modified and
approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for ‘the public transportation

services being provided by the Contractor. Revenues also include funds from contracts,

purchase of service agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the
. transportation service.

SECTION 5311: Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through 1ts Bureau of Rail & Transrc,
Department of Transportation.

Amend P-37 by adding “ACCOUNTING BOOKKEEP[NG AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS?” as Section 26:

Ledgers. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each
budget category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the Contractor.
The ledger sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds
remaining in each line item of the Contract Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall -
be madeon a running basis and carried over to the following month; that ‘is, figures will be
brought forward cumulatively. Contractor shall alse prepare and submit to the State a pfoﬁt and
loss statement quarterly if such information is not provided with invoices.

‘Accounts Receivable. Contractor and/or subcontractor, shall deposit. all revenue in an interest-

bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Contractor shall prepare and maintain
receipt vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt, Contractor and/or subcontractor shall
credit all revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall
establish and maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger on a form approved by the State. The
receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to the receipt vouchér number. A
receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State and shall identify each
component of every deposit.. All approprlate supportlng documents for each deposit should be
attached to the receipt voucher. - - :

Payables. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures
of funds. The.voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form
approved by the State: The Division and account numbers. from which the funds will be drawn,
the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments

- supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received
. by the Contractor shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved

for payment by the Contract Manager. Immediately upon payment, Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall make entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment (Each
subcontractor shall identify a Contract Manager). '

Voucher and Receipt Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain
two registers, which will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers
will provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount and purpose of action. No
self-designated abbreviations are to be used.

Check Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This'register is
also considered a book of original entry, and is posted to the ledger immediately.



10.

N

Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such
work. The contractor shall summarize time reports by task and apply employee's rates of pay to
the hours worked. The Contract Manager shall review completed and signed time reports, and
cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Contractor shall
maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the
appropriate category in the general ledger. The: Contract Manager shall ensure that all payments

are on a timely basis.

Reimbursements. Prior to the fifteenth day of each month, the Contractor shall submit a
description of Contract activities, in a format ias required by the State. Should the Contractor
show a profit for any month, the Contractor shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent
reimbursement requests. The Contractor shall jagree to provide information in addition to the
monthly narrative at such times and in such manner as the State may require; and to prepare any
reports which may be requested by the State including but not limited to a final or termination
report if operations cease.

Maintenance of Records. The Contractor shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Contractor shall maintain, and make availzéblle to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event the State. disputes the
Contractor's operations or records as submltted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall

rest with the State.

Audits and Inspections. Between the Effectlve Date and the Completion Date, and for a perlod
of three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to
this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Contractor's normal business hours,
and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Contractor shall make available to the State
and FTA or their designees all records pertairfing to matters covered by this Agreement. The
Contractor shall permit the State and FTA to audlt examine, and reproduce such records, and to
make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, _payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined
in P-37 section 9.1) and other information relatmg to all matters covered by this Agreement. As
used in this paragraph, "Contractor" includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with,
controlled by, or under common ownership w1th the entity identified as the Contractor in 1.3 of

P-37.

Indepeﬁdent Audit. The Contractor shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) for the entire project, or, as t;he State may require, for any part of the project
upon demand. Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Contract Budget

for that specific purpose. \

.10.1. In the event the audit reveals that monies -are due and owing to the State from the

Contractor, for whatever reasons, the Contractor shall pay to the State such sums within
thirty (30) days of the audit date. "

The Contractor shall submit quarterly performance and charter activity reports within 30 days of
the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information or reports required by the State
to complete the FTA’s National Transit Database? (NTD) reporting. :



co.
27.

C.10.

28.

C.11.

29.

Amend P-37 by adding “PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY” as Section 27:

PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. ' The followrng terms and conditions
apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds provrded
through this or other Agreements between the State and the Contractor:

a. All procurements shall be made in accordance w1th 49 CFR Part 18 and FTA Circular
4220.1F and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Part 660.

b. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State, unless the Contractor has rece1ved pr10r
approval from the State to procure vehlcles

c. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased
by the Contractor subject to the prior approval of the State. .

d. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Contractor; provided, however,
that in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
givé the State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of purchase and shall
execute financing statements and do all other acts necessary or useful to the perfection of
that interest and the renewal thereof. In connéction with the purchase of any motor vehicles
pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor shall give the State a security interest in the

~motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps necessary. to protect the .
State’s security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a lien holder of such .
motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles. '

e. In the event that this agreement is terminated, ail project equipment and property becomes
the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment
shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in
accordance with FTA Circular 9040.1F, and the Section 5311 State Management Plan.

Amend P-37 by addlng “EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION” as sectlon 28:

EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION The Contractor shall ma1nta1n a current inventory listing
of “all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Contract shall submit to the
State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of the
‘Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the State by
May 31st of each year. '

Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE” as sectlon 29:

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance and

. repair of all equipment used in the service described in Exhibit A. Contractor shall maintain all

such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness: The
contractor shall certify proper maintenance procedures, i.e. strict compliance with the vehicle
preventive maintenance guidelines, on vehicle reports. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Contractor and at' a-location
specified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the State of any changes in this.
location. The Contractor further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvement
to equipment as requested by the State.-The State, FTA and/or their designees shall have the
rlght to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper malntenance and
repair. :



C.12. Amend P-37 by adding “REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS?” as sectlon 30:

30.

REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Contractor shall maintain a complete and up to
date record of all motor vehicle repalrs and shall make such records avallable to the State and

. FTA upon demand.

C.13. Amend P-37 by adding “VEHICLE STORAGE” as section 31:

31.

VEHICLE STORAGE. With respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or part under
this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement the Contractor shall park or garage each
vehicle 50 as to ensure maximum avallable protection and safety for each-vehicle. The
Contractor shall also ensure that each vehlcle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that
its daily operations are not impaired or curtalled by conditions of weather or any other
circumstances. The Contractor shall notify the State of the location of the garagmg site and any

relocation. -

C.14. Amend P-37 by adding “TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW?” as section 32:

32.

TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation in training

“courses determined to be essential to FTA program management in this contract period and

may require participation in such training. ;programs as it deems necessary by drivers and other
employees involved in the transportation of the public. Training to include defensive driving,

" passenger assistance, emergency procedures’ and periodic refresher training every three (3)

years. The Contractor agrees that the State shall have the right to review the performance of all

~ drivers who are employed in connection Witli’ this Agreement, and to disallow the use of any

driver whose performance as a driver is deterrhine‘d to be unsatisfactory by the State.

C.15. Amend P-37 by adding “SAFETY REQUIRﬁiV[ENTS” as section 33:

33.

SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. All project equipment shall be inspected and certified by the
Department of Safety, and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards
and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States Department of
Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA 266:72-a, in the
purchase and operation of all project equipmefit. ,

The Contractor shall provide the State with full and prompt written notification of any accident
involving any vehicle used in its services. In'addition, the Contractor shall be responsible to

report any accident in compliance with State law.

The Contraetor shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering the
previous year (January 1 through December 311), summarizing the results of its alcohol misuse
prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in compliance with

49 CFR Part 655.

C.16. Amend P-37 by adding *‘SERVICE LIIVHTA’I??IONS” as section 34:

34.

SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Contractor shall not engage in the provision - of
transportation services other than those descfribed in Exhibit A, or outside the service area
described in Exhibit A, without the written eonsent of the State and without obtaining the
appropriate operating authority. The Contractor shall not engage in charter or school bus
operations except as permitted by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.



C.17. Amend P-37 by adding “CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS” as section 35:

3s.

CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. Contractor warrants that with respect to the
Services to be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are required
by any law, order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for
the performance of the Services hereunder. The Contractor warrants that all personnel engaged .
in the Services shall be qualified to perform such Services, and shall be properly licensed and
authorized to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

C.18. Amend P-37 by adding “LABOR PROVISIONS” as sectlon 36:

36.

LABOR PROVISIONS. The Contractor agrees to adhere to the terms and condltlons of the
Special Section 13(c) Warranty incorporated herein for the protection of the employees of any
employer providing transportation services assisted by this Agreement, and the employees of
any other surface transportation prov1ders in the transportation service area identified in

~ Exhibit A.

The requirements of 29 CFR 5.5(b) are applicable to any contract subject to the overtime
provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other
statutes cited in 29 CFR 5.1. The Contractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records
during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the

‘completion of the contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen,

working on the contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such
employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and
weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. These records shall

~ be made available for inspection, copying, or transcrlptlon by authorized representatives of the

FTA, USDOT, Department of Labor or State, and the Contractor or subcontractor will permit
such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.

C.19. Amend P-37 by adding “PATENT RIGHTS” as section 37:

37.

PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Contractor is
conceived or first actually reduced: to practice in the course of or under this Contract, which
invention, improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or
any foreign country, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed
report. The rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the State with respect to such
invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance w1th applicable Federal
laws, regulations, policies and any waiver thereof. '

C.20. Amend P-37 by adding “BROKERA GE REPRESENTATION? as section 38:

38.

BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION.. The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the
Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any
company Or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Contractor, any
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon
or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this
warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or, in its
discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full
amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.



EXHIBIT D

PROJECT EQUIPMENT
VNA at HCS
VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION
VEHICLE NUMBER
2003 Ford 350 Phoenix small body bus 1FDWE351L.23HA67605
2006 Ford Startrans Supreme Senator II IFDXE45P76HB30344
2007 Ford Eldorado Aerotech Diesel 1FDXE45P37DA47504
2007 Eldorado Aerotech Ford E450 Diesel 1FDXE45P47DA58950
2009 Eldorado Aerotech Diesel Engine 1FDFE45P09DA25992
2011 Startrans Senator II bus 16&2 1FDFE4FS0ADB01900
2011 Startrans Senator II bus 16&2 ; 1FDFE4FS8ADB01899
2011 11&3 Narrow Body Diesel Sprinter Bus - WDYPF4AC995428425




State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshife, do hereby
certify that VNA AT HCS, INC. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
November 18, 1981. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

'In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1** day of April A.D. 2013

oy Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Business Entity
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Corporation Division

Search
By Business Name
By Business ID ~
By Registered Agent
Annual Report
File Online

Privacy -Policy [

Accessibility Policy |

Date: 4/12/2013

Business Name History

Filed Documents
(Annual Report ‘Hlstory, View Images, etc.)

" Principal Mailing Address:

. Name ‘Name Type
VNA AT HCS, INC. Legal
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE HOME CARE
AND COMMUNITY SERVICE, INC. - Prev Legal
HOME HEALTH CARE AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, INC. . Prev Legal
Non-Profit Corporation - Domeistic - Information
Business ID: - 67798
Status: _ Good Standing
Entity Creation Date: 11/18/1981
Principal Office Address: Attn: CEOQ

PO Box 564

Keene NH 03431

" PO Box 564

Keene NH 03431

Expiration Date: Perpetual

Last Annual Report Filed Date: 12/30/2010

Last Annual Report Filed: 2010

Registered Agent

Agent Name:

Office Address: " No Address
No Address

Mailing Address:

Important Note: The status reflected for each entity on this website only refers
to the status of the entity's f|||ng requirements with this office. It does not,
necessarily reflect the disciplinary status of the entity with any state agency
Requests for discipiinary information should be directed to agencies with

Site Map | _Contact Us

httos://www.sos.nh.gov/cornorate/soskb/Corn.asn?380085

licensing or other regulatory authorlty over the entity.

41122013



_VNA at HCS
Certificate of Corporate Vote

The following is a true abstract from an electronic mail vote for which a. quorum was polled of
the Board of Directors of VNA at HCS, Inc. on April 24, 2013:

“On motion duly made and seconded, it was voted to authorize the President/CEO to accept
grants and awards and enter into contracts, and contract amendments from time to time with the
New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit, Sections 5311 and
5317, to sign and otherwise fully execute such acceptances and contracts, and contract
amendments or modifications thereto, and any related documents requested by the New
Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit, Sections 5311 and 5317,
this authorization to contmue until revoked by vote of this governing board.”

I certlfy the foregomg vote is still in effect and has not been revoked, rescmded or modified.

1 fuxther certify that Barbara Duckett is the President/CEO of this corporatlon and is still |
qualified and serving in such capacity.

| \rLD_i |
April 24,2013 ic - M

.Date ‘ Kathexine Snow, Chairpetson
VNA atHCS Board of Directors

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF CHESHIRE

On April 24, 2013, before the undersigned officer personally appeafed the person identified in
the foregoing certificate, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the Chairperson of the
corporation identified in the foregoing certificate, and acknowledged that she executed the

- foregoing certificate.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

/ ! S o }A /@%«/ L D0/ 3

Ca B [ Elizabeth Pri6?. Notary Public Date

CAROL ELIZABETH PRICE, Notary Pulis
My Cammission Bxpires Juns 3, 4



Client#: 986155 . HOMEHEA3
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

ACORD. ' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE i

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF lNFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the pollcy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lisu of such endorsemeni(s).

PRODUCER ] gg&lgCT
USl Insurance Services LL.C _ O e 800 723-2873 [E noy. 603-625-1100
PO Box 406 E-Du!lﬁléss_
Portland, ME 04112-0406 ! . INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
msuan a:Arch Insurance Company . ‘ 11150
INSURED NSURER 8 :
Home Healthcare Hospice & - ' 7
. INSURER C £
Community Services, Inc, INSURER O :
PO Box 564 - E:
Keene, NH 03431 P
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: - REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERT)FY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TC THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY {CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 18 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
i TYFE OF INSURANCE m%%L@JvBu POLICY NUMBER (MMIDDIYYYY] | (MR/DDIYYYY| LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIAgILITY S NCPKG0206601 {01/04/2013 | 01/04/2014] EACH OCCURRENGE 51,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY : PRMAREINEENTED ey |$1,000,000
) [ cLatMs-MaDE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $20,000
' ' | PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | £1,000,000
- )
N } GENERAL AGGREGATE 153,000,000
GEN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: : PRODUCTS - coMp/oP Ace | 53,000,000
POLICY W PR | %o I §
A\ | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY NCAUT0206601 1/64/2013]01/04/2014 EOMENEDSINGLELIMIT T 1 000,000
ANY AUTO ’ BODILY INJURY {Per persan) | $
™1 ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
ALY seHen BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NOM-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
X HIRED AUTOS X AUTOS . Per accident)
. 5
A UMBRELLALIAB | X | gocur NCFX$0206600 D1/04/2013 | 01/04/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE 54,000,000
X| EXCESS LiAB CLAIMS-MADE ' ' ) AGGREGATE * 154,000,000
) T
| oeo | X[ revenmion 510,000 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION ] N TATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY CyIN L 1Ry (it ER
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE . | £.L. EAGH ACCIDENT 5
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA . ] .
{Mandatory in NH) | E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
\f yes, describe under ¢
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below . E£.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT [ §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedul! ) , If more space [s requlrsd)
The General Liability and Auto Liability policies include a blanket automatlc Additional Insured

endorsement that provides Additional Insured status to the Certificate holder: State of New Hampshxre Dept
of Transportation, Bureau of Rail & Transit, only when there is a written contract between the named
insured and the certificate hotder that requires such status and only wuth regard to work performed on

behalf of the named insured.

H

CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

' . SHoULu ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRISED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of New Hampshire THE | EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Dept of Transportation ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Bureau of Rail & Transit
PO Box 483 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Concord, NH 03302-0483
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
4/15/2013

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s)

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

Kennebunk Savings Insurance
50 Portland Road ‘

GoMEACT Nancy Wallace -

PHONE . (207) 985-2941

FAX Nol: (207) 985-3122

Eé“o‘g'gss nancy.wallacelkennebunksavings.com .

PO Box 770 . | eiSTonER 1p #00015149
Kennebuﬁk ) ME 04043 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURED ' insURer A Atlantic Charter Insurance
INSURER B
Home Healthcare Hospice & Community Svecs INSURER C :
PO Box 564 INSURER D :
312 Marlboro St INSURER E :
Keene NH 03431 INSURERF ;
COVERAGES . - CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL128101381 B REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED: NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR.MAY PERTAIN, THE .INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

NSR ADDLISUBI POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DDIYYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL UJABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
. . DAMAGE 10 RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person)__ | §
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY _ | §
o . GENERAL AGGREGATE | §
GEN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | §
pPoLIcY IR0 Loc $
AUTGMOBILE LIABILITY o COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT | ¢
— ' (Ea accident)
[ ANYAUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
|| ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
SCHEDULED AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE .
HIRED AUTOS (Per accident)
NON-OWNED AUTOS $
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DEDUCTIBLE s -
RETENTION _§ - $
2 | WORKERS COMPENSATION x |JNESTATU T JoTt ,
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY TORY LIMITS -
ér:\Frl ggg;&ﬂ%%mgwsﬁcunve NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ © 1,000,000
{Mandatary in NH) CA00539800 7/1/2012 |7/1/2013 | g DiSEASE - EA EMPLOYER § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under .
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT-|"$ 1,000,000
1

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if mord space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Dept of Transportation
Bureau of Rail & Trans:Lt

PO Box 48B3

Concord, NH 03302-048B3

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Danny Edgecomb/NW _,—_‘z“;:‘—_’??-;;’/'/"*— =

ACORD 25 (2009/09)
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- Federal Clauses



Fly America Requirements

Applicability — all contracts involving transportation of persons or property, by a|r between the U.S. and/or places
outside the U.S. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($3, 000 or less, except for construction
contracts over $2,000).

Contractor shall comply with 49 UscC 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance with General Services
Administration regulations 41 CFR 301-10, stating that recipients and subrecipients of Federal funds and their”
contractors are required to use US Flag air carriers for US Government-financed international air travel and
transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign
- air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air
carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a US flag air
carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a
certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor shall include the requirements of this
section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

Charter Bus Requirements
These requirements do not appiy to micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over
$2,000). ' \

. Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5323(d) and (g) and 49 CFR 604, which state that recipients and
subrecipients of FTA assistance may provide charter service for transportation projects that uses equipment or
facilities acquired with Federal assistance authorized under the Federal transit laws (except as permitted by 49

 CFR 604.2), or under 23'U.8.C. 133 or 142, only in compliance with those laws and FTA regulations, “Charter
Service,” 48 CFR part 604, the terms and conditions of which are incorporated herein by reference.

School Bus Requirements A
These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over
$2,000). '

Pursuant to 69 USC 5323(f) and 49 CFR 605, recipients and subrecipients of FTA assistance shall not engage in
school bus operations exclusively for transportation of students and school personnel in competition with private :
school bus operators unless qualified under specified exemptions. When operating exclusive school bus service
under an allowable exemption, recipients and subrecipients shall not use federally funded e'quipment, vehicles or _
facilities. :

Energy Conservation .

All Contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, stated in the state
energy conservation planissued in compliance with the Energy Policy & Conservation Act.

N

Clean Water

All Contracts and Subcontracts over $100, OOO _

Contractor shall comply with alf applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq. Contractor shall report each violation to the recipient and
*understands and agrees that the recipient shall, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the
appropriate EPA Regional Office. Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding
$100,000 financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance.

Lobbying

Construction/Architectural and Engineering/Acquisition of Rolling Stock/Professlonal Servnce Contract/Operational
Service Contract/Turnkey contracts over $100,000

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U. S C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-
65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq .] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more
shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier




above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Corjgress in connection with obtaining any Federal
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any
registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who.has made lobbying contacts on its behaif with non-
Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or-award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures
-are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

Access to Records and Reports

Applicability - As shown below. These reguirements do not:apply to micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for
construction contracts over $2,000) '

The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract:

1. Where the purchaser is not a State but a local government and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA
recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 18.36(i), contractor shall provide the purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller
General or their authorized representatives access to any béoks, documents, papers and contractor records
which are pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.
Contractor shall also, pursuant to 49 CFR 633.17, provide authorized FTA representatives, including any PMO
contractor, access to contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 49 USC
5302(a)1, which is receiving FTA assistance through the profgrams described at 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311.

2. Where the purchaser is a State and is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49
CFR 633.17, contractor-shall provide the purchaser, authorizjed FTA representatives, including any PMO
Contractor, access to contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a capital project, defined at 49 USC
5302(a)1, which receives FTA assistance through the programs described at 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311. By
definition, a capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at

$100,000.

3. Where the purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for;other than a small purchase or under the simplified
acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education; a hospital or other non-profit organization and is an
FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordancé with 49 CFR 19.48, contractor shall provide the
purchaser, the FTA, the US Comptroller General or their autﬁorized representatives, access to any books,
documents, papers and record of the contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

4, Where a purchaser which is an FTA recipient or a subgrantee of FTA recipient in accordance with 49 USC
5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improve%nent (defined at 49 USC 5302(a)1) through other
than competitive bidding, contractor shall make available recérds related to the contract to the purchaser, the -
- Secretary of USDOT and the US Comptroller General or any?authorized officer or employee of any of them for the
purposes of conducting an audit and inspection. :

5. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to rep}oduce by any means whatsoever or to copy
excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

6. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of
not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of
litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performanceiof this contract, in which case contractor agrees to
maintain same until the recipient, FTA Administrator, US Corﬁptroller General, or any of their authorized
representatives; have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, iclaims or exceptions related thereto. Re: 49 CFR

18.39(i)(11).

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.



" Federal Changes
All Contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

Contractor shall comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without
limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between the purchaser and FTA, as they
may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of the contract. Contractor's failure to comply

shall constitute a material breach of the contract.

Clean Air - ' - ,

1) Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations pursuant to the Clean Air Act, 42
USC 7401 et seq. Contractor shall report each violation to the recipient and understands and agrees that the *
recipient will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.

2) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 financed in whole-orin
part with FTA assistance. ’ ~

Recycled Products

All contracts for items designated by the EPA, when the purchaser or contractor procures $10,000 or more of one

of these items during the current or previous fiscal year using Federal funds. The contractor agrees to comply with
_all the requirements of Section 8002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42

U.S.C. 6962), including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order

12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act
Applicability — Cbntracts over $100,000

(1) Overtime requirements - No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which
may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or-permit any such laborer or
mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times
the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for uhpaid wages; liquidated damages - In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in
para. (1) of this section, contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid
wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable for liquid,ated damages. Such quuidated
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of the clause set forth in para. (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on
which such individual was required-or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in para. (1) of this section. *

(8) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - the recipient shall upon its own action or upon written
request of USDOL withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor,
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act, which is held
by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such
contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in para.
(2) of this section. : ' i

(4) Subcontracts - Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section
and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Prime
contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses




- set forth in this section.

‘No Government Obligation to Third Parties
Applicability ~ All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

(1) The recipient and contractor acknowledge and agree that notwrthstandlng any concurrence by the US
Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the’ ‘underlying contract, absent the express wrltten
consent by the US Government, the US Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any
obligations or liabilities to the recipient, the contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract)
pertaining fo any matter resulting from the underlying contract. )

(2) Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA
assistance. It is further agreed that the cIause shall not be modlf' ed, except to identify the subcontractor who will

be subject to its provisions.

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts
Applicability — All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)
(1) Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended,
31 USC 3801 et seg. and USDOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR 31, apply to its actions -
pertaining to this project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness
and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may | grnake or causes to be made, pertaining to the
underlying contract or FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other
penalties that may be applicable, contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a faise,
fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submittal, or certifi cat|on the US Government reserves the right o
: |mpose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act (1986) on contractor to the extent the US
Government deems appropriate.
(2) !f contractor makes, or causes to be made, a false, f'ctltlous or fraudulent claim, statement, submrttal or
certification to the US Government under a contract connected with a project that is fi nanced in whole or in part
with FTA assistance under the authority of 49 USC 5307, thei’Government reserves the right to impose the
‘penalties of 18 USC 1001 and 49 USC 5307(n)(1) on contractor, to the extent the US Government deems
appropriate. r
(3) Contractor shall include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA
assistance. The clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the

provisions.

Termination
Applicability — All Contracts over $10,000, except contracts wrth nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher

learning, where the threshold is $100,000

a. Termlnatlon for Convenience (General Provision) the recrprlent may terminate this contract, in whole or in part,
at any time by written notice to contractor when it is in the reC|p|ent's best interest. Contractor shall be paid its
costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. Contractor
shall promptly submit its termination claim to the recipient. If contractor is in possession of any of the recipient's
property, contractor shall account for same, and dispose of it as the recipient directs. '

b. Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision) If contractor does not deliver items in
accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for services, and contractor fails to perform in
the manner called for in the contract, or if contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the
recipient may terminate this contract for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination to
contractor setting forth the manner in which contractor is in défault. Contractor shall only be paid the contract price
for supplies delivered and accepted, or for services performed in accordance with-the manner of performance set



forth in the contract. ‘

If it is later determined by the recipient that contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a
étrike fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of cbntractor the recipient, -after
setting up a new delivery or performance schedule, may aliow contractor to contmue work, or treat the termination

asa termmatlon for convenience.

¢. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision) the recipient in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for
breach or default, allow contractoran approprlately short period of time in which to cure the defect. In such case,
the notice of termination shall state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If contractor fails to remedy to the recipient's satisfaction the breach or default or any of the terms, covenants, or
conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by contractor or written notice from the recipient ‘
settmg forth the nature of said breach or default, the re0|p|ent shall have the nght to terminate the Contract without-
any further obligation to contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude the
recipient from also pursuing all available remedies against contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

d. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that the recipient elects to waive its remedies for any breach
by contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by the recipient shall not limit its
remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.

e. Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) the recipient, by written notice, may
terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the recipient's interest. If the contract is terminated, the
recipient shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered
before the effective date of termination.

f. Termination for Default (Supplies and Service) If contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services
within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the contractor fails to Gomply with any other
provisions of this contract, the recipient may terminate this contract for default. The recipient shall terminate by.
delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature of default. Contractor shall only be paid the
contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or
performance set forth in this contract.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that contractor was not in default, the
rlghts and obligations of the partles shall be the same as if termination had been issued for the recipient's .
convenience.

g. Termination for Default (Transportation Services) If contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the
services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if contractor fails -
to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the recipient may terminate this contract for default. The
recipient shall terminate 'by delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the natljre of default.
Contractor shall only be paid the contract price for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this contract. :

If this contract is terminated while contractor has possession of the recipient goods, contractor shall, as directed
by the recipient, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to the recipient or its agent. Contractor and the
recipient shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to agree on an amount shalil
be resolved under the Dispute clause. If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined
that contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the pames shall be the same as if termination had
been issued for the recipient's convenience. ’

h. Termination for Default (Construction) If contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part,
with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified, or any extension, or fails to complete the
work within this time, or if contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the recipient may
terminate this contract for default. the recipient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of termination

. specifying the nature of default. In this event, the recipient may take over the work and compete it by contract or-



otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and-piant on the work site necessary
for completing the work. Contractor and its sureties shali be liable for any damage to the recipient resulting from
contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work w1th|n specified time, whether or not contractor's right to
proceed with the work is terminated. ThlS liability includes any increased costs incurred by the recipient in

completing the work.

Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor shall contractor be charged with damages under this

clause if:

1. Delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or
negligence of contractor. Examples of such causes include: ?acts of God, acts of the recipient, acts of another
contractor in the performance of a contract with the recipient, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight

embargoes; and

2. Contractor, within 10 days from the beginning of any delay, notifies the recipient in writing of the causes of
delay. If in the recipient’s judgment, delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The
recipient’s judgment shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes ciauses.

If, after termination of contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that contractor was not in default, or that the
delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the partles will be the same as if termlnatnon had been issued
for the recipient’'s convenience.

i. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect & Engih:eering) the recipient may terminate this contractin
whole or in part, for the recipient's convenience or because bf contractor's failure to fulfill contract obligations. The
recipient shall terminate by delivering to contractor a notice of termination specifying the nature, extent, and
effective date of termination. Uipon receipt of the notice, con:tractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all'services
affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the recipient all data, drawings, specifications,
reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this contract,
whether completed or in process. If termination is for the recipient's convenience, it shall make an equitable
adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services. If termination is for
contractor's failure to fulfill contract obligations, the recipient may complete the work by contact or otherwise and
contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the recipient.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it 'is determined that contractor was not in default, the
rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if termmatlon had been issued for the recipient's

convenlence

j. Termination for Convenience or Default (Cost-Type Contracts) the recipient may terminate this contract, or any
portion of it, by serving a notice or termination on contracto(. The notice shall state whether termination is for
convenience of the recipient or for default of contractor. If te;rminatio'n is for default, the notice shall state the
manner in which contractor has failed to perform the requiréments of the contract. Contractor shall account for any
property in its possession paid for from funds received fromfthe recipient, or property supplied to contractor by the
recipient. If termination is for default, the recipient may fix th:'e fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid to
contractor in pﬁroportion to the value, if any, of work performéd up to the time of termination. Contractor shall
promptly submit its termination claim to the recipient and thé parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to
be paid to contractor. If termination is for the recipient's convenience, contractor shali be paid its contract close-
out costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of-a fee, in proportion to the work berforrhed up to the |
time of termination. o ‘ 4

If, after serving a notice of termination for default, the recipiént determines that contractor has an excusable
reason for not performing, such as strike, fire, flood, eventsf'which are not the fault of and are beyond the control
of contractor, the recipient, after setting up a new work schedule, may allow contractor to continue work, or treat
the termination as a termination for convenience. ‘



Government Wid_e Debarment and Suspension (Non Procurement)

Applicability — Contracts over $25,000 :

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such,- the contractor is reqoired to
verify that none of the contractors, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995; or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR
- 29.805, are excluded or disquaiified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 28. 945,

The contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must rnclude the requrrement to comply with
49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the'recipient. If it is later
determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedres
available to the recipient, the Federal Government may pursue available remedles including but not limited to
suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, -
‘Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The
bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered . .
transactions.

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized
so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts
except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over‘$2,000) '

. The following requrrements apply to the Contractor and its employees that admrnrster any system of records on
behalf of the Federal Government under any contract: '

.

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information
restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1874, 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things,
the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its
employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that
the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, applyto -
those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the anacy Act may result in termination of
the underlying contract.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of
records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by -
FTA. '

Civil Rights Requirements
All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The following requirements apply to the underlying contract:

(1) Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 USC 2000d, Sec. 303
of the Age Discrimination Act (1975), as amended 42 USC 6102, Sec. 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(1990), 42 USC 12132, and 49 USC 5332, contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age or disability. Contractor shall also comply with
applicable Federal implementing regulations and other requirements FTA may issue.

' (2) Equal Emp|oyment Opportunrty The followrng equal employment opportunrty requrrements apply to the
underlying contract:



(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42
USC 2000e, and 49 USC 5332, contractor shall comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity
requirements of USDOL, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
USDOL," 41 CFR 60 et seq., (implementing Executive Order:No. 11248, "Equal Employment Opportunity,” as

. amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending EXecut{ve Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment

Opportunity,” 42 USC 2000e), and any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and policies that
may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the project. Contractor shall take
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment,
without regard to their race, color, creed, national ongln sexior age. Such action shall include, but not be limited
to, the following: employment upgrading, demotion or transfer recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or
termination; rates of pay or other forms. of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In
addmon contractor shall comply with any implementing requnrements FTA may issue.

(b) Age - In accordance W|th Sec. 4 of the Age Dlscnmmatlon in Employment Act (1967), as amended, 29 USC
623 and 49 USC 5332, contractor shall refrain from dlscnmlnatlon against present and prospective employees for
reason of age. Contractor shall also comply with any lmplementlng requ:rements FTA may issue.

(c) Disabilities - In accordance with Sec. 102 of the Amencans with Disabilities Act (ADA), as amended, 42 USC
12112, contractor shall comply with the requirements of US Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC)
Regulations to Implement Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 29 CFR 1630,
pertaining to employment of persons with dlsablhtles Contractor shall also comply with any implementing

requirements FTA may issue.

(3) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with FTA
assistance, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

Breaches and Dispute Resolution
All contracts over $100,000 '

Disputes arising in the performance of this contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be
decided in writing by the recipient’s authorized representative. Th(s decision shall be final and conclusive unless
within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, contjactor r‘na"ils,or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to
the recipient's CEQ. In connection with such appeal, contraé‘tor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and
to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the reC|p|ent's CEO shall be binding upon contractor

and contractor shall abide by the decision.

Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by the recipient, contractor shall continue performance
under this contract while matters in dispute are being resolved. _

Claims for Damages - Should either party to the contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of
any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, Egents or others for whose acts he is legally liable,a  ~
c,:I'aim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within ten days after the first observance

of such injury or damage.

Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in
qufestion between the recipient and contractor arising out of;'or relating to this agreement or its breach will be
decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the residing State.

Rights and Remedies - Duties and obligations imposed by the contract documents and the rights and remedies
availabie thereunder shall be in addition to and not a Iimitatien of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies
otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the recipient or contractor shall constitute a
waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the céntract, nor shall any such action or failure to act
constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in

writing.



Transit Employee Protective Provisions
Contracts for transit operations except mlcro-purchases ($3 000 or less, except for construction contracts over

$2,000)

(1) Contractor shall. comply with applicable transit employee protective requtrements as follows;

(@) Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 48 USC 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas - If
the contract involves transit ‘operations financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance authorized by 49 USC
5311, the contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized
Area Program that is most current, and any alternative comparable arrangement specified by U.S. DOL for
application to the project, in accordance with U.S. DOL guidelines, “Section 5333(b), Federal Transit Law,” 29
C.F.R. Part 215, and any revision thereto. [New amendments to U.S. DOL guidelines, “Section 5333(b), Federal
Transit Law,” 29 C.F.R. Part 215, were published at 73 Fed. Reg. 47046 et. Seq., August 13, 2008.]}

(2) Contractor shall also include any applicable requirements in each subcontract involving transit operations
financed in whole or in part with FTA assistance. :

~ Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Contracts over $3,000 awarded on the basis of a bid or proposal offering to use DBEs

a. This contract is subject to the requrements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. The
national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. The recipient’s overall goal ..
for DBE participation is listed elsewhere. If a separate contract goal for DBE partxcnpatlon has been established for
this procurement, |t is listed elsewhere.

b. The contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the performance of this’ ‘
contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration
of this contract. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract,
which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the municicpal corporation deems
appropriate. Each subcontract the contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this
paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)).

c. If a separate contract goal has been established, Bidders/offerors are required to document sufﬁci_ent DBE
participation to meet these goals or, alternatlvely, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for
- in 49 CFR 26.53. ' ‘

d. If no separate contract goal has been established, the successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its
‘DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance. -

e. The contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory
performance of that work no later than 30 days after the contractor’s receipt of payment for that work from the
recipient. In addition, the contractor may not hold.retainage from its subcontractors or must return any retainage
payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is.
satisfactorily completed or must return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after
incremental acceptance of the subcontractor's work by the recipient and contractor’s recelpt of the partial
retainage payment related to the subcontractor’s work.

f. The contractor m(ust promptly notify the recipient whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this
contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE
subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE



subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiiate without prior written consent of

the recipient.

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms
All contracts except micro-purchases ($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over $2,000)

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms & Conditions required by USDOT: whether or
‘not expressly stated in the preceding contract provisions. AHEUSDOT-required contractual provisions, as stated in
FTA Circular 4220.1F, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all |
FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the_ event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this
Agreement. The contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply. with.any request
that would cause the recipient to be in violation of FTA terms and conditions.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse and Testing }
Operational service contracts except micro-purchases‘($3,000 or less, except for construction contracts over

$2,000)

The Contractor agrees to comply with the following Federal substance abuse regulations: a. Drug-Free A
Workplace. U.S. DOT regulations, "Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (Grants), " 49 C.F.R. Part 32, that
implements the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 U.'S.Cf’. §8 701 et seq. b. Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited -
Drug Use. FTA Regulations, "Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,” 49

CFR Part 655, to the extent applicable.

Other Federal Requirements
The following requirements are not federal clauses.

Full and Open Competition
In accordance with 48 U.S.C. § 5325(a) all procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that

provides full and open competition.

Prohibition Against Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications

Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal statute or regulations, the contractor shall comply with
the requirements of 49 USC 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any FTA assxstance to support procurements
using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. -

Conformance with ITS National Architecture .
- Contractor shall conform, to the extent appiicable, to the Naftional Intelligent Transportation Standards architecture
as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. Séction 512 note and follow the provisions of FTA
Notice, “FTA National Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 66 Fed. Reg.1455 etseq., January 8, 2001, and any
other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in

writing.

Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor. shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities
have the same rights as other persons to use mass transp’dﬁation services and facilities and that special efforts
shall be made in planning -and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. Confractor shali
also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC
794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(ADA), as amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made
available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments thereto.



Notification of Federal Participation

To the extent required by law, in the announcement of any third party contract award for goods and services
(including construction services) having an aggregate value of $500,000 or more, contractor shall specify the
amount of Federal assistance to be used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express that
amount of Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of the third party contract.

Interest of Members or Delegates to Congress
_ No members of, or delegates to, the US Congress shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract nor to any

benefit arising therefrom.

Ineligible Contractors and Subcontractors

Any name appearing upon the Comptroller General’s list of ineligible contractors for federally-assisted contracts
shall be ineligible to act as a subcontractor for contractor pursuant to this contract. If contractor is on the
Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federally financed or assisted construction, the recipient shall
cancel, termlnate aor suspend this contract. '

Other Contract Requirements
To the extent not inconsistent with foregoing Federal requirements, this contract shall also include those standard
clauses attached hereto, and shall comply with the remprent s Procurement Guidelines, avallable upon request

from the recipient.

Compiiance with Federai Reguiations

Any contract entered pursuant to this solicitation shall contain the following provisions: Afi USUUT-requnred ,
contractual provisions, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, are incorporated by reference. Anything-to the -~~~ -~
confrary herein notwithstanding, FTA mandaied ierms shall conirol in the event of a conflict with other provisions
contained in this Agreement Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse fo comply with '
any grantee request that would cause the recipient to be in violation of FTA terms and conditiéns. Contractor shall
comply with all applicable FTA regutations, pohcles procedures and directives, including, without limitation, those
listed directly or incorporated by reference i in the Master Agreement between the recipient and FTA, as may be
amended or promulgated from time to time dunng the term of this contract. Contractor’s failure to so comply shall
constitute a material breach of this contract. ‘ ' ‘ :

Real Property

Any contract entered into shall contain the following provisions: Contractor shall at all imes comply w1th all
applicable statutes and USDOT regulations, policies, procedures and directives governing the acquisition, use
and disposal of real property, including, but not limited to, 29 CFR 18.31, 49 CFR 24 Subpart B, FTA Circular .
5010.1D, and FTA Master Agreement, as they may be amended or promulgated during the term of this contract.
Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency

To the extent applicable and except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient agrees
to comiply with the palicies of Executive Order No. 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited
English Proficiency," 42 U.S.C. § 2000d 1 note and with the provisions of U.S, DOT Notice, “DOT Guidance to
Recipients on Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Beneficiaries,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087,
December 14, 2005.

Environmental Justice : . ; ,

The Recipient agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 12898, "Federal Actions ta Address
Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low Income Populations," 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note, except to the
extent that the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing.



Environmental Protections .
Compliance is required with any applicable Federal laws imposing environmental and resource conservation

requirements for the project. Some, but not all, of the major Federal laws that may: affect the preject include: the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969; the Clean- Air Act; the.Resource Conservation and Recovery Act; the-
comprehensive Environmental response, Compensation and Liability Act; as well as environmental provisions with
Title 23 U.S.C., and 49 U.C.-chapter 53. The U.S. EPA, FHWA and other federal agencies may issue other
federal regulations and directives that may affect the broject, Compliance is required with any applicable Federal
laws and regulations in effect now or that become effective in the future. '

Geographic Information and Related Spatial Data
Any project activities involving spatial data or geographic information systems activities financed with Federal
assistance are required to be consistent with the National Spatial Data Infrastructure promulgated by the Federal |

Geographic Data Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing.

Federal Single Audit Requirements for State Administered Federally Aid Funded Projects Only
Non Federal entities that expend $500,000 or more in a year in Federal awards from all sources are required to
comply with the Federal Single Audit Act provisions contained in U.S. Office of 'M'anagement and Budget (OMB)
Circular No. A 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizatidns. Non Federal entities that
expend Federal awards from a single source may provide a program specific audit, as defined in the Circular. Non
Federal entities that expend less than $500,000 in a year in Federal awards from all sources are exempt from
Federal audit requirements for that year, except as noted in '3052.215(3). but records must be available for review

or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal and State agencies.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Identification'Number

The municipal project sponsor is required to identify in its accounts all Federal awards received and expended,
and the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and award identification shall
include, as applicable, the CFDA title and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and

name of the pass through entity.

CFDA number for the Federal Transportation Administration
A Recipient covered by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States,

Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,” agrees to separately identify the expenditures for Federal
awards under the Recovery Act on the Schedule of Expenditﬁres of Federal Awards (SEFA) and the Data
Collection Form (SF-SAC) required by OMB Circular A-133. The Recipient agrees to accomplish this by
identifying expenditures for Federal awards made under Recovery Act separately on the SEFA, and as separate
rows under ltem 9 of Part lll on the SF-SAC by CFDA number, and inclusion of the prefix “ARRA” in identifying the
name of the Federal program on the SEFA and as the first characters in ltem 9d of Part il on the SF-SAC.






CERTIFICATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING

|, __ Barbara Duckett, President/CEQ _ ; hereby certify
(Name and title of official)

On behalf of _____UNA at HCS that:
(Name of Bidder/Company Name)

» No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Mémber of Congress, and officer or

~ employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection

- with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the
making of any federal loan, the entering:into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

> If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
' to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form — LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with !ts instructions. ;

> The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in
- the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-contracts, sub-
grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that
all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as

.amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not
more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the
statements submitted on or with this certification and understands that the provisions of
31 U.S.C. Section 3801, et seq., are appllcable thereto.

VNA at HCS.

Name of Bidder/Company Name

Type or print name Barbara Duckett N

NS
Signature of authorized representgtive U%MJ‘%@%XZ{D&@T‘W/‘ _j
Signature of notary and SEAL Mc/’%) //

CAROL EL!ZABE‘E'H PRICE, h
© My Commission Expires Ju:ghryg’éop:fﬁc




GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)
" 49 CFR Part 29, Executive Orders 12549, 12689, and 31 U.8.C.6101 (Contracts over $25,000)

Background and Applicability

In conjunction with the Office of Management and Budget and other affected Federal agencies, DOT
published an update to 49 CFR Part 29 on November 26, 2003. This government-wide regulation
implements Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, Executive Order 12689, Debarment
and Suspension, and 31 U.S.C. 6101 note (Section 2455, Public Law 103-355, 108 Stat. 3327).

The provisions of Part 29 apply to all grantee contracts and subcontracts at any level expected to equal or
exceed $25,000 as well as any contract or subcontract (at any level) for Federally required auditing
services, 49 CFR 29.220(b). This represents a change from prior practice in that the dollar threshold for
application of these rules has been lowered from $100,000 to $25,000. These are contracts and
subcontracts referred to in the regulation as “covered transactions.”

Grantees, contractors, and subcontractors (at any level) that enter into covered transactions are required
to verify that the entity (as well as its principals and affiliates) they propose to contract or subcontract with
is not excluded or disqualified. They do this by (a) Checking the Excluded Parties List System, (b)
Collecting a certification from that person, or (c) Adding-a clause or condition to'the contract or
subcontract. This represents a change from prior practice in that certification is still acceptable but is no
longer required. 49 CFR 29.300.

Grantees, contractors, and subcontractors who enter into covered transactions also must require the
entities they contract-with to comply with 49 CFR 29, subpart C and include this requirement in thelr own
subsequent covered transactlons (i.e., the requirement flows down to subcontracts at all levels). ° '

'netructlons for Cert-ﬁcatlor' By elgn- 'g and eubmzttmg this bid or propesal, the prosp'ective lower tier
participant is providing the signed certification set out below. :

Suspension and Debarment _
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the contractor is required

to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at
49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.

The contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to
comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it-enters into.
By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the recipient. If it is later
determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in-addition to
remedies available to the recipient, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including
but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to.comply with the
requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract
that may arise from this offer The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requmng such
compliance in its lower tier covered transactlons

Contractor VNA at HCS

\ —
Signature of Authorized Official \éﬁlg% { M oYU L Ef,,) _Dits 7—«&%_4/

Barbara Duckett, Pres1dent/CEO

N

Name and Title of Contractor's Authonzed Official



Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Section a.

Separate contract goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterpi'ise (DBE) participation
The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has established a goal of

2.5% for DBE participation for this contract in lieu of the 10% national goal outlined in
‘Section a. of the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Federal Clause.

By signing below the Contractor agrees to comply with the applicable Federal
Clauses. '

Company Name: WA at HCS

\uthorized Name: Barbara Duckett .
Signature: W)%/ A 8 / ’Cé/(/‘? SON

Title: = President/CEQ







SPECIAL SECTION 13(c) WARRANTY FOR APPLICATION
TO THE SMALL-URBAN AND RURAL PROGRAM

Standard Terms and Conditions

(1) The Project shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such terms and conditions as.
 will not adversely affect employees of the Recrplent (the Contractor) and of any other surface .
public transportation provider in the transportation service area of the Project. It shall be an
obligation of the Recipient and any other legally responsible party designated by the Public Body
to assure that any and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and
" operated in such a manner that they do not impair the rights and interests of affected employees.
The term "Project", as used herein, shall not be limited to the particular facility, service, or -
operation assisted by federal funds, but shall include any changes, whether organizational,
operational, technological, or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase
"as a result of the Project," shall when used in this arrangement, include events related to the
Project occurring in anticipation of, during, and subsequent to the Project and any program of
efficiencies or economies related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and falls of
business, or changes in volume and character of employment brought about by causes other than
 the PrOJ ect (including any economies or efficiencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the

purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, displaced or otherwise
~ worsened in his/her position with regard to his/her employment as a result of the Project, but
who is dismissed or displaced or otherwise worsened solely because of the total or partial
termination of the Project, discontinuance of Projectiservices, or exhaustion of Project funding
shall not be deemed eligible for dismissal or displacement allowance within the meaning of
paragraphs (6) and (7) of the Model Agreement or appheable provisions of substitute comparable

arrangements

(2)(a) Where employees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaining purposes, all
Project services provided by that Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any
- collective bargaining agreement applicable to such employees which is then in effect.

(2)(b) The Recipient or legally responsible party shall provide to all affected employees sixty
(60) days notice of intended actions which may result in displacements or dismissals or
rearrangements-of the working forces. In the case of employees represented by a union, such
notice shall contain a full and adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of the
number of employees affected by the intended changes and the number of classification of any
jobs in the Recipient's employment available to be filled by such affected employees.

(2)(c) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices involve
employees represented by a union for collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the
Recipient or the representatives of such employees negotiations for the purposes of reaching
agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement shall
commence immediately. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20) days from the
commencement of negotiations, any party to the dispute may submit the matter to dispute
settlement procedures in accordance with paragraph (4) of this warranty. The foregoing
procedures shall be complied with and carried out prior to the institution of the intended action.



(3) Forthe purpose of providing the statutory requlred protectlons including those specifically
mandated by Section 13(c) of the Act 1, the Public Body will assure as a condition of the release
of funds that the Recipient agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the National
(Model) Section 13(c) agreement executed July 23, 1975, identified below 2, provided that other
comparable arrangements may be substituted therefore, if approved-by Secretary of Labor and -

certified for inclusion in these conditions.

(4 Any dispute or controversy arising regarding the application, interpretation, or
enforcement of any of the provisions of this arrangement which cannot be settled by and between
‘the parties at interest within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy first arises, may be
referred by any such party to any final and binding disputes settlement procedure acceptable to
the parties, or in the event they cannot agree upon such procedure, to the Department of Labor or
an impartial third party designated by the Department of Labor for final and binding
determination. The compensation and expenses of the impartial third party, and any other jointly
incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by the partles to the proceeding and all other expenses :

shall be paid by the party incurring them.

In the event of any d1spute as to whether ornot a part1cular employee was affected by the
Project, it shall be his/her obligation to identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the
Project relied upon. It shall then be the burden of either the Recipient or other party legally
responsible for the application of these conditions to prove factors other than the Project affected ‘
the employees. The claiming employee shall prevail if it is established that the Project has an -
effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have arfectea the emproyee

(%) The Re01p1ent or orher legahy respons1ole party deslgnatea by the Public Boay Wlll be

financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary
_ arrangements so that any employee covered by these arrangements with the Recipient with sixty -

(60) days of the date s/he is terminated or laid off as a result of the Project, or within eighteen
(18) months of the date his/her position with respect to his/her employment is otherwise
worsened as a result of the Project. In the latter case, if the events giving rise to the claim have
occurred over an extended period, the 18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such
event. No benefits shall be payable for any period prior to six (6) months from the date of the

filing of any claim.-

(6) Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or
benefits which such employee may have under existing employment or collective bargaining . -
agreements, nor shall this arrangement be deemed a waiver of any rights.of any union or of any
represented employee derived from any other agreement or provision of federal, state or local

law.

(7) In the event any employee covered by these arrangements is terminated or laid off as a
result of the Project, s/he shall be granted priority of employment or reemployment to fill any
vacant position within the control of the Recipient for which s/he is, or by training or retraining
- within a reasonable period, can become qualified. In the event training or retraining is required
by such employment or reemployment, the Recipient or other legally responsible party -
designated by the Pubhc Body shall provide for such trammg or retrajning at no cost to the

~ employee.



(8) The Recipient will post, in a permanent and accessible place, a notice stating that the
Recipient has received federal assistance under the Urban Mass Transportation Act and has
agreed to comply with the provisions of Section 13(c) of the Act. This notice shall also specify
the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall
maintain and keep on file all relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the
basic information necessary to the proper application, administration, and enforcement of these
arrangements and to the proper determination of any claims arising there under.

(9) Any labor organization which is the collective bargaining representative of employees
covered by these arrangements, may become a party to these arrangements by serving written
notice of its desire to-do so upon the Recipient and the Department of Labor. In the event of any
disagreement that such labor organization represents covered employees, or is otherwise eligible
to become a party to these arrangements, as applied to the Project, the dispute as to whether such
organization shall pamc1pate shall be determined by the Secretary of Labor,

(10) In the event the project is approved for assistance under the Act, the foregomg terms and
conditions shall be made part of the contract of assistance between the federal government and
the Public Body or Recipient of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not
merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be independently binding and enforceable by and .
upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employée or his representative, in accordance with
its terms, nor shall any other employee protective agreement merge into this arrangement, but
each shall be independently binding and enforceable by and upon the part1es thereto, in
accordance with its terms.
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
197 LOUDON ROAD, SUITE 350
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
TELEFAX 603/224-2397

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘Board of Directors
VNA at HCS, Inc. '
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of VNA at HCS, Inc., as of June 30, 2012
and 2011 and the related statements of operations, changes in nets assets and cash flows for
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Association's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Association as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 28, 2012
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VNA AT HCS, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
ASSETS
- 2012 2011
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents % 057,631 1,470,766
Temporary investments ' 33,457 224,557
Patient accounts receivable, less allowances for o :
uncollectible accounts of $293,046 and :
$301,641 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively - ' 2,000,336 1,524,066
Other receivables 391,605 529,809
Prepaid expenses 27,611 28,527
Due from affiliates 5279069 5,310,719
‘Total Current Assets 8,689,709 9,088,444
Assets Limited As To Use 170,374 34,828
Property And Equipment, Net } 362,960 - 273,832
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,203,043 9,397,104
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable , $ 153457 153,730
Due to third-party payers - 5535 12,000
Accrued payroll and related expenses 651,451 1,134,372
Deferred revenue 566,862 765,713
Total Current Liabilities 1,377,305 2,065,815
Net Assets .
Unrestricted 7,675,364 7,296,461
. Temporarily restricted 151,716 -16,170
Permanently restricted 18,658 18,658
Total Net Assets 7,845,738 7,331,289
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 9,223,043 9,397,104

(See accompanying notes to thése financial statements)
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED ]UNE 30,2012 AND 2011

Operating Revenue
Net patient service revenue
Other operating revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits
‘Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Management fees

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME
Other Revenue and Gains

Contributions
Investment income
Total Other Revenue Gains

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

Net assets released from restriction for
capital acquisitions

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

2012

2011

$ 14,904,158

$ 15,036,079

3,020,600 3,460,916
17,924,758 18,496,995
11,874,598 11,776,699

3,005,816 - - 2782081

348,770 329,262
111,000 163,276

2692832 2 655,865

18,033,016 17,707,183

(108,258) 789,812
316,391 177,000

3,595 6,470
319,986 183,470
211,728 973,282
167,175 119,482
378,903 1,092,764

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Temporarily = Permanent

. Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 6203697 § 16,232 S 18,658 $ 6,238,587
Excess of revenue over expénses 973,282 - - 973,282
Contributions ) - 119,482 - 119,482
Investment income - 23 - 23
Net assets released from restriction - (85) - (85)
Net assets released from
restriction for capital acquisitions 119,482 (119,482) - -
Change in Net Assets , 1,092,764 () : 1,092,702
Balance, June 30, 2011 | - 7,296,461 16,170 18,658 o 7,331,289
Excess of revenue over expenses 211,728 : - - 211,728
Contributions - ‘ - 367,175 - 367,175
Investment income - ' 353 - 353
Net assets released from restriction - (64,807) - (64,807)
Net assets released from
restricHon for capital acquisitions - 167,175 (167,175) - -
Change in Net Assets - 378,903 135,546 - 514,449
Balance, June 30, 2012 $ 7675364 . $ 151,716 % 18,658 $ 7,845,738

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 514449 $ 1,092,702
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
" netcash provided (used) by operating activities (
Bad debt expense ‘ 111,000 163,276
Depreciation 348,770 329,262
(Increase) decrease in the following assets: ;
Temporary investments 191,100 (1,635)
Patient-accounts receivable (587,270) (409,994)--- -~ -
Other receivables 138,204 118,487
Prepaid expenses 916 (22,160)
Due from affiliate 31,650 (1,350,917)
Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities: '
Accounts payable (273) 39,956
Due to third-party payers (6,465) 7,000
Accrued payroll and related expenses (482,921) 94,397
Deferred revenue (198,851) (95,835)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 60,309 (35,461)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Increase in assets h’mi)ted as to use (135,546) 62
Capital expenditures, net of dispositions (437,898) ~ (347,035) .
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (573,444) (346,973)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (513,135) (382,434)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,470,766 1,853,200
957,631 $ 1,470,766

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

VNA at HCS, Inc.,, “The Association”, is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in New
Hampshire whose primary purposes are to provide home health care and hospice services
to residents residing in the City of Keene and surrounding communities. The sole member
of the Association is Home Healthcare, Hospice and 'Community Services, Inc. The
Association is exempt from federal income taxes under the Internal Reveriue Code Section

501(c)(3).
Affiliates

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Comxnuru"ty Services, Inc., is a non-stock, non-profit
corporation in New Hampshire whose primary purposes are to act as a holding company
and provide management services to its affiliate. The Association is exempt from federal
income taxes under the Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
As a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on
income earned in accordance with its tax exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is
subject to state and federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association’s tax
positions and concluded that the Association has no unrelated business income or,
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions.that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ

from those estimates.



NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) -

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less, excluding assets limited as to use. Short-term highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of more than three months are classified as

temporary investments.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use primarily include assets that are limited as to use per donor
restriction. Assets limited as to use per donor restriction include temporarily restricted
assets for hospice respite services and permanently restricted endowment assets.

Propertv.and Equipment:

Furniture and equipment are carried at cost. Mamtenance repairs and minor renewals
are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line method and provided over the estimated useful life of

each class of depreciable asset.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Association has been
limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets
have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Association in perpetuity, the -

income from which is expendable to support hospice.

Patient Service Revenue -

Standard charges for services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are
rendered. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other third-party resources,
are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding fee scale.
Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered. :



NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Donor Restricted Gifts N

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the
date the promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as
either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. '

‘When a donor restriction .is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of operations as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are
met within the same year as received are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the

accompanying financial statements.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The Statements of Operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in .

unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include changes in net unrealized gains and losses on
investments and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using
contributions which, by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring
such assets). - '

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance that
requires that cost be'used as a measurement for charity care disclosure purposes. It also
"requires disclosure of the method used to identify or determine such costs. The
amended disclosure requirements are ‘effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2010 and must be applied retrospectively. The Association adopted the
amended disclosure requirements on July 1, 2011 and retrospectively applied the
amendment for the year ended June 30, 2011.



NOTE2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Assets limited as to use by donor restriction at June 30, 2012 and 2011, follows:

2012 2011
Donor restricted :

Temporarily - meal sites $ 6,825 $ 6,808
Temporarily - respite : 9,362 9,362

Temporarily - Shea charitable gift ; - 135,529 -
Permanently ~ income for operations 8,658 8,658
Permanently - income for hospice 10,000 10,000
Total _ : $ 170374 $ 34828

The composition of assets limited as to use at ]ﬁhe 30, 2012 and 2011, follows:

2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,362 $ 19,362
Temporary investments ~ 151,012 15,466
Total $ 170374 $ 34828

Cash and cash equivalents included in assets limited as to use are not considered cash and
cash equivalents for cash flow purposes. '

NOTE3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The cost and accumulated depreciation of furniture and equipment at June 30, 2012 and
2011, follows:

2012 2011
Furniture and equipment : $ 1,701,672 $ 1,491,089
Less, accumulated depreciation 1,338,712 1,217,257
Property and Equipment, Net $ 362,960 $ 273,832



NOTE 4 ENDOWMENTS

4

There were no board designated endowments. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds, are classified and
reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Association classifies
~as a donor restricted endowment (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor restricted
endowment gifts and (c) accumulations to the donor restricted endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts
are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a manner consistent with the

standard . of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the

‘organization considers the following factors in making a determination to appropnate— :
or accumulate donor—resu'lctecl endowment funds:

(1)  The duration and preservation of the fund

(2)  The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment
fund

(3)  General economic conditions

(4)  The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(6) The expected total return from income and the apprec1a’c10n of
investments

(6)  Other resources of the Association

(7) ~ The investment policies of the Association

. The Association spending policy is to appropriate for expenditure an amount equal to
total investment return earned on endowments. As a result, the endowments are

reported based on the historical cost value at the time of contribution.

The endowment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents.

NOTES5 NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE
The Association has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to

the Association at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the
payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

-10-



NOTE5 NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Net patient service revenue provided for the year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
follows: :

2012 2011
Medicare $ 9,966,493 $ 10,015,450
Medicaid ' 1,412,002 1,809,979
Other third-party payers ' 1,598,642 1,442,667
Municipalities - fee for service 73,058 134,702
Private pay 1,853,963 1,633,281
Total $14,904,158 $ 15,036,079

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to. interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to.
future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action
including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The
Association believes that it is in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations. However, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
could change by a material amount in the near term. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and' amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or
- payable are included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts

become known.

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity
care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the
Association does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care,

they are not reported as revenue. ‘

The Association provided services in other health—nelated activities, primarily to
indigent patients, at rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were
provided without charge. The Association estimates the costs associated with providing
the other health-related activities by applying Medicare cost report methodology to
determine program costs less any net patient revenue generated by the program. The
estimated costs incurred in these activities amoiimted to $2,796,100 and $2,667,880 for

the years June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

-11-



NOTES5 NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE (CONTINUED)

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received
through local community support and federal and state grants. Local community

support consists of contributions received directly from the public, United Way,
municipal appropriations, and investment income earned from assets limited as to use.
Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from the State of New Hampshire.

NOTE6 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location.
Expenses related to providing these services for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

follows:

2012 _ 2011
Program services $ 15,340,184 _ $ 15 ,051,318
Admﬁﬂsﬁaﬁve and general : 2,692,832 2,655,865
Total $ 18,033,016  $ 17.707.183

NOTE7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Assc_)ciatioﬁ purchased services from affiliates amounting to $2,692,832 and $2,655,865
in management services and $163,830 and $125,419 in contract services for the years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. '

NOTE8 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution in excess of $250,000,
which exceed federal depository insurance limits. The financial institution has a strong
credit rating and management believes the credit nsk related to these deposits is mmmal

The Association is located in Keene, New Hampshire. The Association grants credit
without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured
~under third-party payer agreements. At June 30, 2012 Medicare represented 68% of
gross accounts receivable, respectively. No other individual payer source exceeded 10%
of the gross accounts receivable balance.

J12-



NOTES9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Association has adopted a defined contribution plan that covers substantially all
employees who have one year of service and worked at least 975 hours during the first
twelve-month period. Employee vesting occurs on a graduated schedule and become
fully vested after 5 years. The Plan allows for employer contributions on employee
earnings based on a board approval on a yearly basis. The Plan also allows for employer

matching of employee contributions.

The retirement plan expense was $116, 154 and $134,347 for the years ended June 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively. ,

NOTE 10 MALPRACTICE INSURANCE

The Association insures its medical malpractice risks on a claims made basis. There
were no known malpractice claims outstanding at June 30, 2012 and 2011, which in the
opinion of management, will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage; nor
are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Association

intends to renew coverage on a claims made bas1s and anticipates that such coverage

will be available.

NOTE 11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management
through September 28, 2012, which is the date the financial statements were available to be

1ssued
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HCS/VNA at HCS, Inc.
Board of Directors
2012 - 2013

Katherine J. Snow, Chair
2008-2011
2011-2014

Deborah J. Blanc, Vice-Chair
2009-2012
2012-2015

Gregg Tewksbury, Treasurer
2006-2009
2009-2012
2012-2013

Betsy Cotter, Secretary
2011-2014

Janet Ackerman
2012-2015

Joe Baute

2006-2009
2009-2012
2012-2013

JoAnn Fenton
2009-2012
2012-2015

Peter Gosline
2009-2012
2012-2015

Audrey Hadcock
2007-2010
2010-2013

Jane Larmon
2012-2015

Charles Montgomery, MD
2008-2011 '
2011-2014

Maureen O’Brien
2011-2014

Brian Reilly, MD

- 2012-2015

Joji Robertson
2012-2015

Ex Officio:

. Barbara R. Duckett, CEO
- HCS, VNA at HCS

Richard J. Skeels, CFO

- HCS, VNA at HCS



Key Administrative Personnel Sheet
NH Department of Transportation

Bureau of Rail & Transit

Agency Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

/
Annual Salary Of _
~ Key Percentage of
Administrative | Salary Paid By
Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Personnel Contract

Harry Costick, Transportation Program Manager $51,659 84.00%
30 0.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
$0 0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES $51,659 0




Key Administrative Personnel Sheet
NH Department of Transportation
Bureau of Rail & Transit

Agency Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

v

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

Annual Salary of
Key Administrative
Personnel

Percentage of Salary

Harry Costick, Transportation Program Manager

$52,847

Paid By Contract

$0

$0

$0

TOTAL SALARIES .

$52,847




Harry W. Costick

3

Summary

Ability to work independently using logical, efficient and thoughtful procedures. Strong in
practical skills with focus on details, organization, precision and accuracy. Good with
logistics and timely at getting things accomplished. Able to manage staff with record
keeping, training and scheduling. :

Employment
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM MANAGER% MAY 1993 TO PRESENT
Home Healthcare, Hospice and Communuy Services Keene, New Hampshire

Started as a Bus Driver in 1993. Duties mcluded Pickup and return of clients to medical and
other related appemtmer'ts according to daily schedules. Responsible for assisting
passengers in wheelchairs and other disabilities requiring extra assistance. Worked as a
dispatcher and supervisor up to September 2002. Duties included: Training of employees,
conduct employee evaluations, responsnBle for coordination of maintenance and repairs for
fleet buses and vans. Supervision of transportatmn drivers , Dispatchers and substitute
drivers. Route planning and setup of route schedules and times. Was promoted to
Transportation Manager in September 2002. Other responsibilities include operations of
two separate transportation systems, a Demand Response system and a Public Transit
system. Work closely with program dire@tor on system budgets and acquisition of vehicles,
on State and Federal Levels. A member of the New Hampshire Transit Association&
Community Transportation Association bf America.

ROUTE SALES / TRUCK DRIVER 1991 10 1993
Wakeman Industries-Merriam Graves Corporation Greenfield , Massachusetts
Duties Included: Delivery of welding supplies, industrial gases, and quality service to
established customers. Kept accurate recbrds of truck inventory, daily sales and customer
invoices. Occasionally worked the counter in the store in sales, inventory, ordering of
products for customer and route dlspatchmg

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR / TRUCK DRIVER /PART-TIME & FULL TIME 1986 TO 1990
Marty’s Paving and Construction Watertown , Connecticut
Duties included: Drove a wide variety of truck and truck/trailer combinations, moving
material and equipment to different job locations. Performed a wide variety of skills in
paving and drainage work. Skillful operation of bulldozer and backhoe to specific grades
and designs. Capable of reading blueprints and use of field transit and setting grades.
Supervised a crew of two to three men. Résponsible for basic repairs and maintenance of
equipment. Performed basic plumbing and carpentry work as required.



ARMORED TRUCK DRIVER / PART - TIME 1989
Loomis Armored Service ‘ Beacon Falls,Connecticut -
Duties included: Truck driver and crew leader of one to three men. Made timely deliveries
from main depot to banks and other financial institutions. Kept precise records of delivery
times, places and load inventories. This was a bonded position.

CARPENTER / LABORER 1986 TO 1988
Roland Construction _ Oxford, Connecticut

‘Duties included: Construction of Timber Column buildings, horse barns, garages and
storage buildings. Performed layout work from blueprints, foundation work, framing,
siding, roofing and finish work. Also installed rough plumbing and electrical work. Other
related building maintenance performed. :

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR/TRUCK DRIVER 1973 TO 1986
Town of Watertown / Public Works Department Watertown, Connecticut
Duties included: Operated various types of equipment and trucks. Worked on pipe crew
installing drainage systems. Operated snow removal equipment to include plow trucks,
backhoes, bucket loaders, sand and salt spreaders. Also performed all forms of road
maintenance and other related duties.

Education
HiGH SCHOOL _ ' 1965 - 1969
Thomaston High School Thomaston, Connecticut
\ 1973
Crosby High -GED ‘ Waterbury, Connecticut
GREENFIELD COMMUN]TY COLLEGE 1995
Home Inspection Course Greenfield, Massachusetts.
COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 2002
Certified Community Transit Supervisory Training Austin , Texas
Military Service
UNITED STATES ARMY _ " 1970 - 1972
Military Police - Sentry Dog Handler ' Viet Nam Veteran

Honorable Discharge
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